
 

 

Posted: April 19, 2017 @ 4:30pm 

 
TOWN OF GEORGETOWN 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Meeting Date:   Wednesday, April 26th, 2017 
       Location:    Town Hall, 39 The Circle, Georgetown, DE     

Time:    7:00 P.M. Regular Meeting 
 
7:00 p.m. Regular Meeting 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2. Invocation 
 
3. Adoption of Agenda 
 
4. Approval of Minutes 

A. April 12, 2017 Town Council Minutes 
B. April 21, 2017 Town Council Special Meeting Minutes 

 
5. Lead 360 Finalists – Jefferson Awards 

 
6. 1st Reading of Ordinances 

A. Ordinance #2017‐2 Burning, Outdoor 
B. Ordinance #2017‐3 Personnel, Use of Town Supplies and Equipment 

 
7. 2nd Reading & Adoption of Ordinance 

A. Ordinance #2017‐1 Amend Chapter 230: §230‐200 Planning Commission and 
§230‐179 Board of Adjustment Procedures 

 
8. 2nd Presentation & Decision 

A. Case #2017‐01 Xergy Inc., Conditional Use Application  
 

9. Departmental Reports 
A. Town Manager – Gene Dvornick 

 
10. Public Comment 
 
11. Adjournment 
 
 
The agenda  items as  listed may not be considered  in sequence.   This agenda  is subject  to change to  include additional  items  including 
executive sessions or the deletion of items including executive sessions, which arise at the time of the meeting.  Persons with disabilities 
requiring special accommodations to attend this meeting should contact the Town Office  in writing 72 hours  in advance of the meeting, 
stating their needs in order to have them addressed under the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

 



 
 

 

ORDINANCE 2017- 02 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF GEORGETOWN, 
CHAPTER 70 THEREOF, ENTITLED BURNING, OUTDOOR 

THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GEORGETOWN IN COUNCIL MET AND 
HEREBY ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Chapter 70, Burning, Outdoor of the Code of the Town of Georgetown is 
hereby amended as follows: 

§ 70-1. Definitions. 

Fire Pit – A pit dug into the ground or made from stones, masonry, etc, that rests on 
the ground, for keeping a fire used for recreation or cooking. 

Public Way – A street, sidewalk, alley or bike trail. 

Recreational Fire – A small outdoor fire whose purpose is for pleasure, viewing, 
religious, ceremonial, cooking, warmth or similar purposes using only seasoned dry 
firewood or commercially available charcoal briquettes. 

Rubbish – Items such as paper, plastic, rubber, food products, metal, glass and 
combustible liquids. 

Structure – A building, garage, house or shed attached to the ground that consists of 
a roof and may have walls. 

Yard Waste – Vegetative matter resulting from landscaping and yard maintenance 
operations and includes materials such a tree and shrub trimmings, vegetables, 
flowers, leaves, grass clippings, trees and tree stumps. 

 

§ 70-2. General. Permit required. 

Any person, partnership or corporation who or which burns, causes to have burned or permits to 
have burned leaves, brush, paper, trash or other combustible matter within the corporate limits of 
the Town of Georgetown without obtaining a special permit therefor from the Town Council shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor; provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall 
prohibit the use of outdoor fireplaces for the preparation of food. Prior to such burning, it shall be 



 

 

the responsibility of the applicant to contact the State Fire Board to ensure compliance with state 
regulations. 

A. Within the town limits of Georgetown, no person shall burn any garbage, solid waste, 
commercial solid waste, yard waste, household waste, junk, refuse, rubbish, 
construction waste, hazardous waste, buildings, or structures. 
 

B. The use of outdoor grills and barbecues for cooking is permitted. 
 

C. Recreational fires shall be allowed in approved containers or fire pits. 
 

1. For the purpose of this section, an approved container shall be defined as a 
device specifically designed for the use of burning wood or charcoal, including 
but not limited to portable fireplaces, fire pits or chimineas.  All portable 
devices shall be equipped with a spark arrestor (i.e. screen or chimney).  A 
container made of stone, metal, or ceramic construction designed for the 
purpose of containing a fire shall also be permitted provided the total burning 
area does not exceed 3 feet in diameter and 2 feet in height.  Wood contained 
in permissible fires shall be no more than 3 feet in length. 
 

2. No approved container shall be located within eight (8) feet of a structure or 
public way.  No approved fire pit shall be located within twenty five (25) feet 
of a structure or public way. 

 
3. Only clean, dry firewood or charcoal may be used for recreational 

fires.  Construction materials or yard waste are strictly prohibited.  The use of 
flammable or combustible liquids, other than commercially produced 
charcoal lighter fluid, to start the fire is strictly prohibited. 

 
4. All recreational fires shall be constantly attended by a responsible adult until 

the fire is extinguished.  A means of extinguishing the fire shall be available 
for immediate use. 

 
5. All recreational fires have maximum time limit of 4 hours and shall be 

properly extinguished at the end of activities or time limit.  Regardless of when 
the fire was initiated it is not allowed to extend later than 11:00 p.m. and may 
begin no earlier than 7:00 a.m. 

 
6. The fire shall be immediately extinguished any time wind conditions exist such 

that the wind may carry brands or embers creating a potential for fire 
extension. 

 
D. The Town Manager or their designee may prohibit any type of burning that becomes 

a nuisance based on complaints of irritation of eyes or breathing of others, or when 
the atmospheric conditions or local conditions make such fire hazardous and may 



 

 

order the extinguishment of any fire which creates or adds to a hazardous or 
objectionable situation. 

§ 70-3. Violations and penalties. 

Any person violating any provision of this chapter shall pay such fines as set out in Chapter 1, 
Article III, General Penalty. 
 

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall become effective following its adoption by a majority vote of 
all members elected to the Town Council. 

BE IT ENACTED by the Town Council of the Town of Georgetown, Delaware on the     
_____day of ____________________ A.D., 2017. 

  

 William E West, Mayor 

  

 Steve M Hartstein, Secretary 

 
 

1st Reading: April 26, 2017  

2nd Reading: May 10, 2017  

Adoption:  May 10, 2017  

 



 
 

 

ORDINANCE 2017- 03 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF GEORGETOWN, 
CHAPTER 29 THEREOF, ENTITLED PERSONNEL 

THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GEORGETOWN IN COUNCIL MET AND 
HEREBY ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Chapter 29, Article VIII  Conditions of Employment, § 230-46(B) Use of 
Town supplies and equipment of the Code of the Town of Georgetown is hereby amended by 
adding the following: 

 
B. Use and operation of Town-owned motor vehicles. 

 
1) Town-owned motor vehicles shall be used for official Town business only. 

 
2) Town vehicles shall not be taken home overnight except as follows: 

 
a. Employees may take a Town-owned vehicle home for one night when 

attendance to an out-of-Town meeting takes place late at night after normal 
working hours or early in the morning prior to normal working hours. 

b.The employees designated by the Town Manager to be "on twenty-four-
hour call" for department/division emergencies.  

c. For more than one night when specifically authorized by the Town 
Manager. 

 
3) Town vehicles must be available for the Town business at all times. 

 
4) Town vehicles may be used for travel to lunch: 

 
a. When an employee is on Town business. 
b.When an employee is in Town in a Town vehicle in a location where driving 

to obtain his/her personal car would result in an extra and unnecessary 
expenditure of fuel. 

 
5) Transporting family members in Town vehicles shall be allowed only when the 

family member is accompanying a Town employee to a business meeting or official 
function. 
 



 

 

6) Town vehicles shall be legally and appropriately operated and/or parked at all 
times. Violations issued to the driver of the vehicle will be the responsibility of the 
driver not the Town. 
 

7) Seat belts will be used by the driver and all passengers at all times when the vehicle 
is in motion. It shall be the driver's responsibility to ensure the use of seat belts by 
all passengers. 
 

8) Town-owned motor vehicles shall be kept in a clean and presentable condition. 
Lack of care may result in disciplinary procedures. 
 

9) Department heads may establish supplemental department vehicle policies as 
approved by the Town Manager. Supplemental policies shall not conflict with any 
part of this policy. Such policies shall be published as an update to this policy. 
 

10) The Town may, at any time, check the driving record of a Town employee who 
drives as part of his/her job duties to determine that he/she maintains the 
necessary qualifications as a Town driver. Employees agree that they will 
cooperate in giving the Town whatever authorization is required for this 
purpose.  
 

11) Employees who hold jobs that require the driving or operation of Town 
vehicles or motorized equipment must notify their supervisor, department 
head, or the Town Manager by the end of the department’s next working day 
when:  

 
a. They have been arrested and charged with DWI, DUI, reckless 

driving, or any other serious moving violation; 
b. They have had their driver’s license suspended, cancelled, or 

revoked;  
c. Their license expires without immediate renewal; or  
d. An Occupational Driver’s License or similar license has been 

issued to them.  

Reports shall be made in person or by phone conversation (not a voice mail) 
with the appropriate supervisor.  Failure to report such information by the 
end of the next working day shall result in disciplinary action up to and 
including termination, unless there are extenuating circumstances.  
Supervisors shall promptly report such information to the Town Manager. 

12) Employees who are in jobs that require the driving or operation of Town 
vehicles or motorized equipment who are convicted of a DWI or DUI will be 
terminated, although the Town may also take disciplinary action prior to 
conviction. Disciplinary action for conviction of other serious moving 
violations will be determined on a case by case basis and may result in 
termination of employment.  Removal or suspension of driving privileges 



 

 

and/or disciplinary action while waiting for adjudication shall be determined 
by Town Manager in consultation with the department head on a case‐by‐case 
basis.  The Town Manager’s determination as to removal or suspension of 
driving privileges shall be final. 

 

Section 2.  This Ordinance shall become effective following its adoption by a majority vote of 
all members elected to the Town Council. 

BE IT ENACTED by the Town Council of the Town of Georgetown, Delaware on the     
_____day of ____________________ A.D., 2017. 

  

 William E West, Mayor 

  

 Steve M Hartstein, Secretary 

 
 

1st Reading: April 26, 2017  

2nd Reading: May 10, 2017  

Adoption:  May 10, 2017  

 



 

 

 

ORDINANCE 2017- 01 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF GEORGETOWN, 
CHAPTER 230 THEREOF, ENTITLED ZONING 

THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF GEORGETOWN IN COUNCIL MET AND 
HEREBY ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Chapter 230, Article XXVI Administration,  § 230-200 of the Code of the 
Town of Georgetown is hereby amended by adding the following: 

§ 230-200. Planning Commission.  

A. Establishment. There is hereby established a commission to be known as the "Planning 
Commission," hereinafter referred to as the "Commission." 
 

B. Membership; appointment; terms of office; removal from office. 
 

1. The Commission shall be comprised of five members, appointed by the Mayor, 
subject to the approval of the Town Council. Each of the members shall be at least 
21 years of age, and property owners and residents in the Town of Georgetown, 
with an interest in urban and rural planning and development, except that no 
more than one (1) non-resident of the Town may be a member of the 
Commission, and this non-resident member must be an owner or employee of 
a business, public institution, or industry operating in the Town. 
 

2. Members of the Planning Commission shall be appointed for a term of three 
years; provided, however, that upon the original appointments, all members of the 
previously constituted Planning Commission shall be appointed for the remainder 
of their current terms. All members shall be eligible for reappointment. 
 

3. Any member of the Planning Commission may be removed from office for 
inefficiency, neglect of duty or malfeasance in office after a hearing and by a 
majority vote of all the elected members of the Town Council, or as provided in 
Subsection B(4). 
 

4. Any member of the Commission who fails to attend 75% of the scheduled 
meetings of the Commission in any twelve-month period, without an excuse 
acceptable to the Chairman, shall be deemed to have resigned and the vacancy 
shall be filled as herein provided for original appointments. Any vacancy 



 

 

occurring other than by expiration of term shall be filled for the remainder of the 
unexpired term in the same manner as an original appointment. 

 
Section 2. Chapter 230, Article XXIII Board of Adjustment, § 230-179 of the Code of the 
Town of Georgetown is hereby amended by adding the following: 

§ 230-179. Procedures.  

The following shall be the procedures of the Board of Adjustment: 
 

A. Applications for special exceptions, interpretations and variances may be made by any 
property owner, tenant, government official, department, board or bureau. Such 
application shall be made to the Town Manager in accordance with rules adopted by the 
Board. The application and accompanying maps, plans or other information shall be 
transmitted promptly to the Chairman of the Board who shall place the matter on the 
docket and instruct the Town Manager to advertise a public hearing thereon, and give 
written notice of such hearing to the parties in interest. The Town Manager shall also 
transmit a copy of the application to the Planning Commission which may send a 
recommendation to the Board or appear as a party at the hearing. 
 

B. An appeal to the Board may be taken by any person aggrieved or by any officer, 
department, board or bureau of the Town affected by any decision of the Town Manager. 
Such appeal shall be taken within 30 days after the decision appealed from by filing with 
the Town Manager a notice of appeal specifying the grounds thereof. The Town Manager 
shall forthwith transmit to the Board all the papers constituting the record upon which the 
action appealed from was taken. An appeal stays all proceedings in furtherance of the 
action appealed from unless the Town Manager certifies to the Board that by reason of 
facts stated in the certificate a stay would, in his or her opinion, cause imminent peril to 
life or property, in which case proceedings shall not be stayed otherwise than by a 
restraining order granted by the Board or by a court of record, on application and on 
notice to the Town Manager and on due cause shown. 
 

C. The Chairman shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of an application or appeal, give 
public notice thereof, as well as due notice to the parties in interest, and decide the same 
within 30 days following the hearing. Upon the hearing, any party may appear in person 
or by agent or by attorney. Public notice of hearing shall consist of publication at least 15 
days prior to the hearing in a newspaper of general circulation in the Town of 
Georgetown, specifying the time, place and nature of the hearing. In addition, the Board 
may cause the date, time, place and nature of the hearing to be posted conspicuously on 
the property in accordance with the rules of the Board. In exercising its powers, the 
Board may reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may modify, the order, requirement, 
decision or determination as ought to be made, and to that end shall have all the powers 
of the Town Manager. 
 

D. The Board shall keep minutes of its proceedings and other official actions, showing the 
vote of each member upon each question or if absent or failing to vote, indicating such 



 

 

fact, and shall keep records of its examinations and other official actions, all of which 
shall be filed in the Town Office of Georgetown and shall be a public record. The 
Chairman of the Board, or in his or her absence the Vice Chairman, may administer oaths 
and compel the attendance of witnesses. 

Section 3.  This Ordinance shall become effective following its adoption by a majority vote 
of all members elected to the Town Council. 

BE IT ENACTED by the Town Council of the Town of Georgetown, Delaware on the     
_____day of ____________________ A.D., 2017. 

  

 William E West, Mayor 

  

 Steve M Hartstein, Secretary 

  

PC Public Hearing: March 15, 2017  

TC Public Hearing: April 12, 2017  

1st Reading: April 12, 2017  

2nd Reading: April 26, 2017  

Adoption:  April 26, 2017  

 


















































	April 26 2017 Agenda
	Ordinance 2017-02 Burning Outdoor (002)
	Ordinance 2017-03 Personnel Use of Town Supplies and Equipment (Final) (002)
	Ordinance 2017-01 -Amend Chapter 230 Planning Commission Appts & Board of Adjustment Procedures
	Case #2017-01 Xergy Inc Conditional Use Application

